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Plaintiff Barry Pinkowitz, Individually and on behalf of all other persans Simil’zir_])?@

situated, by his undersigned attorneys, alleges upoen personal knowledge as to himself and

his own acts, and information and beliet as to ali other matters, based upon, infer alia, the

investigation conducted by and through his attorneys, which included, among other things,

a review of the public documents and announcements made by defendants, and Securitics

and Exchange Commission {"SEC"} filings, and press releases regarding Elan Corporation,

PLC ("Elan" or the “Company") as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION E

1. Tins 1s a class action on behalf of all persons who purchased the 3¢t
Flan during the period December 21, 2000, through and including February 1
"(Class Period™), to recover damages caused by defendants’ violation of the federa

laws. During the Class Period, defendants issued to the investing public falsc and
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and earnings. Moreover, the Company omitted to state material information necessary in
order to make prior statements not misleading.  Also, the Company engaged in improper
accounting practices that artificially inflaled the Company’s reported revenues; artificially
increasing the assel side of its balance sheet; and the improperly reduced its reported
expenses. The result of this conduct is that embers of the class purchased shares of Elan at
artificially inflated prices and have suffered damages.

2. Elan has not been forthcoming with respect to its violations of gencrally
accepted accouniing standards. Instead, the Company’s conduct has been revealed to the
markets througha January 30, 2001, -The Wall Street Journal report.

3. As discussed below in detail, The Wall Street Journal reported that Elan
participated 1n over fifty (50) research and development venturcs. In thc context of each
venture, Elan invested money in the venture and then took back large chunks of the invested
cash in the form of licensing fecs, which Elan then improperly booked as revenues.

4. The result of this practice is that the Company was able to report inflated
financial results during the Class Period and avoid the inclusion on its balance sheets of
certain rescarch and development expenses. Moreover, as detailed below, Elan utilized
otherimproper accounting methods to avoid including on its profit and loss statement, losses
incurred by these ventures.

5. This information uncarthed by The Wall Streer Journal report contradicted
much of the information provided by defendants to the market during the Class Period

concerning he Company’s reported earnings. Once the market fully digested the truth

concerning Elan’s accounting practices, Elan’s Company's common plummeted $5.95 per
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share — nearly 17% in one day on volume of 37 million shares - more than 20 times its
average daily volume! The Company’s stock price has not recovered and Elan continues to
refuse to fully address the circumstances surrounding its accounting practices. Morcover,
defendant KPMG LLP, Elan’s auditor, has declined comment.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. The claims asserted hercin arise under and pursuant to sections 10{b) of the
Secunties Exchange Act 0f 1934, 15 U.S.C. 78j(b) (the "Exchange Act") and the rules and
regulalions promulgated thercunder by the SEC, including Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5.
7. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter ot this action pursuant to
section 27 of the Exchange Act, |5 U.S.C. 78ua and 28 U.5.C. Sce. 1331,

8. Venue 1s proper in this Judicial District pursuant to section 27 of the
Exchange Act and 28 L.S.C. 1391(b). Many of the acts and transactions constituting the
vielations of law alleged herein, including the preparation and dissemination to the investing
public of false and misleading information, ocourred in substantial parl in this Judicial
District. The Company engages in substantial business and maintains an office within this
jurisdiction and 1ts stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange in ADR form. Moreover,
defendant KMP(G 1.I.P maintains is executive offices in this District.

9. In connection with the acts, transactions and conduct alleged herein,
defendants, directly and indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstatc

commerce, including the United States mails, interstatc telephonc communications and the

facilities of the national sccuritics cxchanges.



THE PARTIES

10, Plaintiff purchased shares of Elan conunon stock during the Class Period as
per the annexed certificate.

11 Defendant Elan is an Irish entity and maintains its principal place ol business
at Lincoln House, Lincoln Place, Dublin 2, Ireland. The Company maintains an office at 345
Park Avenae, New York, New York 10154,

12, Elan purports to be a worldwide pharmaceutical concern that is primarily
engaged in the discovery, developm&;ﬁl, and marketing of products in diverse therapeutic
areas. Asot'February 1, 2002, Elan had approximately 322 million shares outstanding with
a public float of 270.4 million shares, During the Class Period, Elan's common stock was
actively traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ELN™ ag an ADR.
According to published reports, approximately 70% of all of Elan’s stock is owned by
Americans or American enlitics. Elun’s fiscal year onds on December 31,

13, Elan had a duty to promptly dissemimnate truthful and accurate information
with respect to Elan and te promptly correct any public statements 1ssued by or on behait ot
the Company which had hecome (aise ar misleading,

14,  Defendant Donald Geaney 1s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

15, Defendant John Groom is President and Chief Operaling Officer of the
Compatty.

16.  Defendant Thomas Lynch is Vice Chuirman of the Company.

17.  Defendant Shane Cooke i1s the Chief Fmanctal Officer of the Company.




13. Defendant William Clark is President of Elan’s pharmaceutical operations.

19, Messrs. Geancy, Groom, Lynch, Cooke, and Clark are referred to herein as
the “Individual Defendants”.

20, The Individual Defendants, by reason of their direct and substantial
managemenl positions and responsibilities during the time relevant to this Complaint, were
"controlling persons”of Elan within the meaning of section 20 of the Exchange Act and had
the power and influence to control Elan and exercised such control to causc thc Company to
engage mn the violations and improper practices complained of herein. The Individual
Detendants, becausc of their positionsas officers and directors of Elan had access 1o adverse
non-public mformation about the Company's financial condilion and fuwre prospects.

21, The statements made by defendauts as outlined below were materially false
and misleading when made. Defendunts had no reasonable or adequate basis to justify or
support their camnings forecasts. The true financial and operating condition of the Company,
which was known or recklessly disregarded by the defendants, remained concealed from the
investing public. Defendants, who were under a duty to disclose those facts, instead
misrepresented or concealed them during the relevant period herein.

22, Defendant KPMG LLP ("KPMG”) maintams its Chairman's officc in New
York City at 345 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10154, KPMG is a limited liability
partnership with offices throughout the U.S. and numerous other countries. Tt has 1,900
partniers and a U.S, staff of 20,90(.

23, Defendant KPMG is a worldwide firm of certified public accountants,

auditors and consultants that provides a variety of accounting, auditing and consulting



services.  KPMCG, through its New York office, served as {ilan's auditor and principal
accounting finn comnencing prior to the Class Period hercin and continuing at all relevant
times, KPMG@G acted in that capacity pursnant to the terms of contraces it had with Elan which
required, inter alia, KPM( to audit Elan's financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted anditing standards {"GAAS") and to report the results of those audits to Elan, its
buard of directors and to plaintiffy and the class. With knowledge of Elan's true financial
condition, as alleged below, or in reckless disregard thereof, KPMG certified the false and
misleading financial statements of Elan described beiow and provided unqgualified
Independent Auditors’ Reports which were included in various of the Company's SEC filings
and public disseininations. These unquatified audit opinions and reports greatly enhanced
and facilitaied the fraud alleged below and violated (GA AS and generally accepted auditing
principles ("GAAP"), which KPMG was obliged to observe. In addition, pursuuant o
defendants’ scheme. KPMG jointly with defendants, arranged tor and facilitated the
frandulent accounting praclices ulilized by Elan during the Class Period. 1n return for
providing these services, KPMG received substantial compensation from Elan, while still
failing lo properly perform its contractual, disclosure and other obligations owed to ilan and
its public investors,

24, Defendant KPMIUG, by virtue ot its position as mdependent accountant and
auditor of Elan, had access to the files and kcy employees of the Company at all relevant
times. As a result of the audiling services it provided Lo Elan, KPMG had continual access
to and knowledge of Elan's confidential, corporate, financial, operating and business

information. KPMG knew or recklessly disregarded Elan's true financial and operating



situalion, and intentionally or recklessly failed to take steps which, as Elan's auditor, KPMG
could and should have been taken to fully and fairly disclose that situation to the investing
public. Elan faisely represented that is audits of Iilan financial statements had been
conducted in accordance with GAAS and wrongfully issued "clean" or unqualified opinions
or certifications that those financial statements fairly presented Elan's financial condition and
results of operations in conformity with GAAP.

25.  Asthe Company's principle accounting firm and auditor, KPMG frequently
and regularly mel with Cornpany personned, bad access to internal corporate data and reports
and had the opportunity to observe the Company's business and business practice and to test
the Company's mternal and publicly reported financial statements as well as the Company’s
internal controls structure.

26, KPMG knowingly participated in and acquiesced in the presentation by its
audil client of false and misleading financial information to the investing public which did
not adequately account for, among other things, the Company's revenues. As a result of
KPMG's knowing misconduct, KPMG is jointly and scverally liable to plaintiff's and the
other members of the (lass.

27. Defendants knew orrecklessly disregarded that the misleading statements and
omissions complained of herein would adversely affect the integrity of the market for the
Company's stock and would cause the price of the Company's common stock to hecome
artificially inflated. Defendants acted knowingly orin such areckless manner as to constitute

a fraud and deceit upen plaintiff and the other members of the Class.



SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

28. On December 21, 2000, the first day of the Class Peniod, Dow Jones Business
News published a report stating that Elan’s management “remains comfortable with the high
end of analysts’ estimates for the fourth quarter [1999] as wcll as fiscal 2000 and 2001, and
knows of no reason for the recent fall in its sharc price.” The Company further reported to
Dow Jones that all of its major development programs and product introduction was on track.

29. On January 4, 2001, it was announced over the PRNewswire that Generex
Biotechnology Corporation and Elan had cntered into a joint venture to develop “'products
tor the treatment of prostate cancer.” The press release, in part, stated:

TORONTO, Jan. 4/PRNewswire/  (Generex Biotechnology Corporation

{Nasdag: GNBT) today announced that it has signed an agreement to form a

join venture with Elan Corporation. The jein venture will pursue the

application of certain proprietary drug delivery technologies of Generex and

Elan to pharmaceutical products for the treatment of prostate cancer,

endometriosis and/or the suppression of testosterone and estrogen. Under the

terms of the agreement, Elan will also make an initial $5 million equity

investment in Generex. The transaction will close later this month.

The join venture will have non-exclusive licenses to utilize Generex’s

proprietary buccal delivery technology and certain of Elan’s proprietary drug

delivery technologies. Generex and Flan will each coniribute to the funding

of the joint venture and will each provide clinical development, regelatory,

project developmeni amd business development guidance to the venture.

a0, On April 23, 2001, Elan released its frst quarter 2001 results wherein it was

reported over Dow Jones Business News that:

DUBLIN — Elan Corp. swung to a first-quarter profit amid a 27% increase in
revenue.

The Irish pharmaceutical concern Monday reported net income of §76.4
million, or 22 cents a diluted share, compared to a year-garlicr loss of $267.5
million, or 89 cents a share.



Results in the iatest guarter inciuded charges of about $68 million, from
scverance, assct wrile-offs and integration and rationalization primarily
related to the company’s merger wilh Dura Pharmaceuticals Ine. Excluding
items, carnings from continuing operations came to $144 4 million, or 41
cents a share, a penny better than analysts® estimates, according to Thomson
Financial/First Cail.

Y car-carlier results included a charge of aboul $344 million [rom the eflccls
of a change refated to 2 new accounting rule. Exciuding that itern, Elan said
carnings flom continuing operations came to $76.5 million, or 24 cents a
share.

Revenue grew 27% to $429.3 million from $337.9 million, driven by a 39%
Increase in product revenue, which accounted for 73” of total revenue.

In fiscal 2001, the pharmaceutical company said it expects to record $100
million 1 revenue for its three largest products - Zanaflex, which trcats
central nervous system disorders, skeletal-muscle pain reliever Skelaxin and
antifungal drug Abelcet.

31. On July 24, 2001, Elan reported over the PRNewswire “Record Sceond
Quarter 2001 Financial Results .. . Specifically, the Company reported:

DUBLIN, Ireland, July 24/PRNewswire/ ~ Elun Corperation, ple (NYSE:
ELN} (“Elan™) today announced net income for the second quarter of 2001
of 3163,7 mullion and $4.45 per diluted share, excluding other charges.
compared to net income of $102.9 million and $0.3! per diluted share,
excluding other charges, for the second yuarter of 2000, representing
increases of 59% and 45%, respectively.

Revenue increased from S368.8 million in the second quarter of 2000 Yo
$461.2 million in the sceond quarter of 2001, an increase of 25%, refleciing
an increase of 48% in product revenue to $356.3 million. Contract revemie
for the gecond quarter of 2001 of $104.9 million was 18% lower than the
comparahle quarter of 2000, mainly reflecting the termination of a research
und devclopment arrangement i the thicd quarter ol 2000 (Spiros
Development Corp 1T Inc.). Productl revenue accounted for 77% of total
revenue in the second guarter of 2001 compared to 63% in the comparable
quarter of 2000, The gross margin on product revenue improved to 72% in
the second quarter of 2001 compared to 68% in the comparable quarter of
2000,
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Research and development expenses were $78.4 million in the second guarter
of 2001, compared to $§3.1 milkion in the second quarter of 2000. This
reflects lower expenditure on terminuled drug delivery programs previously
funded by Dura. Selling, general and adininistrative expenses increased by
19% to $148.7 million in the second quarter of 2001, reflecting the
conselidation of The Liposome Company, Inc. (acquired in May 2000}, the
acquisition of certain dermatotogy products in the fourth quarter of 2000, and
increased marketing expenses associated with the launches of Zonegran and
Myobloc.,

Operating income in the second quarter of 200t increased 62% to $135.6
million compared to $33.5 million in 2000. Net income after taxes and
hefore other charges in the second quarter of 2001 increased 59% to $163.7
muilion compared to $102.9 million in the second quarter of 2000, primarily
reflecting growth in product revenue and the improved gross margin on
product revenue,

2. On October 25, 2001, Tian reported third quarter 2001 results. As reported
over the Dow Jones International News:

DUBLIN - (Dow Tones) - Irish pharmacenticals group Elan Corp. PLC (ELN)

said Thursday that third-quarter net income rose 37% to S183.5 million from

$133.6 million for the same period last vear.

Elan said third-quarter 2001 diluted eamings per share before other charges

and a non-recurnag investment gain rose 24% to 50 cents from 38 cents for

the third quarter in 20040,

It posled a third-yuarter sales increase of 24% o $484.3 million from $390.3

million for the same period last year, which reflects a 44% increase in

product sales to $381 million.

Thesc results maiched or came in marginally above analysts” expcetations.

Dublin-based NCB Stockbrokers forecast third-quarter total sales of $480

nillion und third-quarter EPS o[ 50 cents.

33, On Jamary 28, 2002, Elan confirmed consensus estimates for 2001, over the

Dow Jones News Service.
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NEW YORK - (Dow Jones) - Elan Corp. (F1.N) said in a statement Monday
that it can’t cite any rcason for a recent drop in its stock price, adding that it
remains comfortahle wilh consensus estimates for the fourth quarter and year.
A Thomson Financial/First Call survey of analysts produced a consensus
earmings estimate of 56 cents a share for the quarter and $1.92 a share for
full-year 2001.

For the 2000 fourth quarter, Elan reported income before its items of $158.4
million, on revenue of $424.4 million. For 2000, the company earned $495.2
million, or $1.45 2 share, on revenue of $1.52 billion.

The Irish pharmaceutical company said it plans to report 2001 results next
Monday.

The stock traded recently at $34.15, down $2.70, or 7.3% on heavy Nasdaq
volume of 11.6 miilion shares. Average daily volume 15 about 2.4 mithon
shares.

34, Elan’s reported Class Period carmings, presented above, were false and
misleading and failed to disclosc that the Company’s scemingly strong camnings were a
hictien created by improper and mislcading accounting practiegs.

35. As detailed in the January 30, 2002, cdition of The Wall Street Jowrnal, Elan
1s & partner 1 approximately 50 rescarch and development ventures that cnablc Elan to shift
R&D costs off Elan’s backs and allow [lan to book revenue well before the venture has even
developed a product.

36.  The Wail Street Journal offered an example. Elan will invest $20 million in
a partner and the joint venture, and the venture immediately pays Elan $15 million for a
medical technology license necded to engage in the development project. Elan then books

the %15 million as revenues, books the S20 million on its books as un assel, and does not

bock any type of corresponding expense, namely an R&D charge. Essentially, Elan books

11



$15 million in revenues on $20 million it already had in its accounts, and converts the $20
million to a $20 million investment asset.

37 Elan, in a number of situations, leaves the joint venture cash poor following
the transfer. It then loans money to the venture which the venture repays to Elan in exchange
for Elan doing much, if not all, of the work. This allows Elan to generate interest income on
the loan and revenues associated with the contractual relationship to do the research project.

38. The Wall Street Journal further reported that:

Inone case, a joint venture with a small North Carolina biotech firm designed
to find a treatment for ulcerative colitis, Elan booked revenue even though no
cash appears to have changed hands when the venture was sct up. In another
joint venture, with a Canadian biotcch firm, the partners hadn’t decided what
research the venture would pursue betore it pard all of' its funds to Elan for
a license.

39. With respect to Elan’s dealings with a company named Incara, Elan appears
to have engaged 1n what 1s known as “round-trip revenue™:

Though Elan docsn’t announce the joint ventures’ financial results or much
clsc about them, some details can be gleaned from SEC filings by the
company or its partners, such as Incara Pharmaceuticals Corp. of Research
Trianglc 'ark, North Carolina. According to a securities-purchase agreement
filed by Incara with the SEC last January, Llan invested $2.985 million into
the joint venture, bringing the venture’s funding to $15 million,

The SEC filing said Elan would pay Incara the $16.015 million by wire
transfer. Bu in Incara’s subscquent quarterly filings with the SED, its
statements of cash flow don’t show a receipt of this cash in financing
activitics, nor do they show any payment from Incara to the joint venture in
investing activities. Yet SEC flings say the joinl venture bought a §15
miilion technology licensc from Elan.

Asked why the quarterly flings showed no payments of cash, Elan says in a
writlen response (hat “cash was transferred by way of a cross receipt,” which
it calls a “legal mechanism under which amounts owing under different
contracts are amalgamated with the resulting amount being settled by wire
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tramsfer.” Elan says it 1s “not aware of how Incara disclosed the movement
in cash.” Incara declines to comment on its accounting for the transaction.

Assuming Elan did pay the $16 million to Incara, it would still seem that all
they money the joint venture used {o pay a license fee to Elan had come from
Elan itself. Asked ifthis doesn’t amount to what accountants call “round-trip
revenue,” Elan’s Mr. Lynch rejects the characterization, neting that “we end
up owning equity” in the majority partner. Tncara says its venture with Elan
has started a late-stage clinical trial in ulcerative colitis patients.

40.  Further, according to a Scptember 17, 2001, article that appeared in Forbes
Magazine:

On Dec. 31, 1999 Elan bought Axogen for S268 million, A month later it
picked up Neuralab for $76 million. Now those R&D costs are flowing onilo
Elan’s profit and loss staternent, but Elan is using other means to bolster
revenues and keep some of its research outlays out of the P&L, through
“strategic collaborations,” says Teeters.

In these deals Elan joins another drug company in a joint venture, makes a
cash investment in the venture, then gets some or all of the cash back in the
form of a license or contract fee for Elan technology spread over the
agreement. In 1999 Elan invested 2835 million in stralegic collaborators and
ook in $194 million in licensing [ees from these ventures. Last year it put
5378 mullion into these ventures and booked $169 million in license fees.

Elan typieally takes equity stakes of less than 20% in the companies or joint
ventures, so it’s not required to consolidate these deals in its own financial
statements, Teeters says. Instead, it books then investment as an asset and the
license fee as revenue. But are these really arm’s-length deals? Forinstance,
Amarin, a British company that makes headache remedies, among other
things, agreed to buy $25 million worth of drug licenses and inventory from
Clan in 1999, Later than year Clan took a $23 millton stake in Amarin.
Shortly aftcr, Thomas Lynch, who is Elan’s cxceutive vice chairman, became
“non-executive” chairman of Amarin.

41.  The Wall Street Journal also detailed Elan’s dealing with a Company called
Generex:

One joint venture brought revenue to Elan 12 months before the partners had
even mapped out a rescarch program. Formed a year ago, it involved



Generex Biotechnology Corp. of Toronto. Generex’s CEQ, Anna Gluskin,
says lhe venlure paid Elan a $15 million license fee for drug-delivery
technology. Yet the partners didn’t know which chemical compound they
would develop or even which disease they would target. In an SEC filing at
the time, Generex said the “parties intend to select at least ome
pharmaceutical product for rescarch and development under the joint veniure
within one year's time.”

How could they decide a year in advancc that the medical technology was

worth $15 million - all the moncy the joint venture had? Elan says the price

of its licenses 1s based on what the technology is worth, not on the usc of it.

Ms. Gluskin says the joint venture  which, like Incara’s, is based in

Bermuda— could afford to pay that much for a license “based on the potential

for coming to market sooner than other” competing drugs. She says the

partmers estimated that the market for whatever drug was eventually

developed would be at least $500 million a year.

42, Moreover, according to The Wall Streer Journal, Flan has not been
forthcoming with respect to whether it is advantaged by the losses experienced by the joint
ventures. Elan admits that all of the ventures operate at a loss. Standard accounting practices
require that where a company’s stake in a joint venture is below 20% (as Elan’s are), it may
use “cost accounting” and have to reflect share of the investment’s losses on its own profit
and loss statemnents. If, however, a company in the position of Elan, exercises significant
influence over the nvestment, it should usc the “equity” method of accounting and record
its share of the loss in the joint venture in a line on its {Elan’s) P&L statement, thereby
reducing earnings.

43.  Here, as reported in Journal,

In Elan’s typical amrangement with joint ventures, it has veto power over

rescarch, 50% board representation and 2 dghl lo raise its 19.9% financial

stake to 50%. Yet Elan’s P&L statements don’t break out any losses from the

ventures. The Center for Financial Research & Analysis Inc. in Rockville,

Maryland, a firm that analyzes companies’ books for big investors, has said
1n a report that Elan appcars to be using cost accounting.
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44, In response, however, Elan statcs:

Elan says it uscs the cquity method “where appropriate.” It adds in a written

statement that 1t “‘expenses its share of the operating losses of all business

ventures regardless of whether the equity method or cost method is used.

Such amounts are included, in full, in net interest expense.”

45 Nevertheless:

Why in the world would they put this in interest expense? That doesn’t make

any sense at all,” said J. Cdward Ketz, an associatc professor of accounting

at Pennsylvania Statc University, when told of Elan’s statement. ““What they

are dotng is not consistent with either cost-method or equity-method

accounting. | don’t see how, under U.S. GAAP, that would be.” [n addition,

the interest-expense table in Elan’s SEC filings doesn’t seem ta show such

losses.

46.  Elan’s auditor, defendant KPMG, according to the Jouwrnal rcfuscs to
comment:

Elan’s auditor, KPMG, declines to comment, citing client confidentiality.

Elan is managed by a former KPMG partner, Donald Geaney, who has heen

at Blan for 14 years and chief executive since 1995, Mr._ Lynch, the executive

vice chairman, came over from KPMG in 1993, and Elan’s chicf financial

officer, Shane Cooke, also is a former KPMG partner.

47. The market’s response to these revelations in The Wall Street Journal was
severe. As detailed above, the Company’s stock fell nearly 17% and investors have lost
millions of dollars.

48. On February 4, 2002, before the markets opened, the Company released
results for the 4Qand Fiscal Yecar 2001. The Company revealed that “in light of current
market concerns relating to off-balance sheet arrangements™ it was providing information

about two “qualified special purpose entities™, or QSPEs, which it said were not consolidated

in its final results as presented under U.S. accounting principles. It is said that the value of



the investment of the two QSPEs was “insufficient to pay the indebtedness of the entities”
A (CSFB analyst, David Maris, was quoted by Reuters “This i1s an unmitigated disaster — we
think when investors get through the details you’ll find out shenanigans have accounted for
the majority of Elan’s earnings.” The stock dropped nearly an additional $14 or 46% by
noon onh February 4, 2002,

ADDITIONAL SCIENTER

49, As alleged herein, defendants acted with scicnter in that defendants, by
and through their cmployee(s), knew or recklessly disregarded (hat the public documents
and statements issued or disseminaled in the name of Elan were materially false and
misieading; knew or recklessly disregarded that such statements or documents would he
issued or disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially
participated or acquiesced in the lssuance or dissemination of such statements or
documents as primary violations of the fedcral securitics laws.

50.  Defendants knew at all relevant times Lhat Elan’s accounting methods did
nol conform with standard procedures and where designed to artificially inflate the
Company’s reported results. For example, in 1999, the SEC investigated Elan’s
accounting practices with respect to transactions with third parties. The result of the
investigation was that the SEC compelled Elan to restate downward its 1997 earnings by

approximately $.02 per share.
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COUNT 1

Violation of Section 10{b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5

51.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in the
foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

52.  This Count is asserted against the Defendants and 1s based upon Section
10(b) of the 1934 Act, 15 U.5.C. § 78(b), and Rule 10h-3 promuigated thereunder.

53, During the Class Period, the Defendants directly engaged in a common
plan, scheme, and unlawful course of conduet, pursuant to which it knowingly or
recklessly enpaged in acis, transactions, practices, and courses of business which operated
as a fraud and deceit upon plantiff and the other members of the Class, and made varions
deceptive and untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material in order to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading to plamntiff und ihe other mncrubers of the Class. The purpose and effect of
said scheme, plan, and unlawful course of conduct was, among other things, to induce
plamtit and the other members of the Class to purchase Elan common stock during the
Class Penod at aruficially inflated prices.

54, During the Class Period, the Defendants, pursuant to said schemne, plan,
and unlawful course of conduct, knowingly and recklessly issued, caused to be issued,
participated in the issuance of, the preparation and issnance of deceptive and materially
false and misleading statements to the investing public as particularized above.

55.  Asaresulf of the disscmination of the [alse and misleading staternents set

forth above, the market price of Elan common stock was artificially inflated during the

17




Class Period. In ignorance of the fulse und misleading nature of the statements described
above and the deceptive and manipulative devices and contrivances employed by said
Lefendants, plamtiff and the other members ol the Class relied, to their detriment, on the
integrity of the market price of the stock in purchasing Etun commeon stock. Had plamntift
and the other members of the Class known the truih, they would not have purchased said
shares or would not have purchased them at the inflated prices that were paid.

36, Plamtiif and the other members of the Class have suffered substantial
damages as a resuli of the wrongs herein alleged in an amount 10 be proved at trial,

57. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants directly violated Section 10(b) of
the Exchange Act and Rule 1h-5 promulgated thercunder in that it {2) employed
devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue siatements of mawerial facls or
omitted to state material facts in order to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; ot (¢} engaged in acts,
practices, and a course of business which operated as a fraud and deceit vpon plainti(f and
the other members of the Class i conpection with their purchases of Flan common slock

duving the Class Period.

For Violation of Section 20(a) of The Exchange Act
{Against the Individual Defendants)

58.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges cach and every allegation contained above

as it fully set forth herein.
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59.  The Individual Defendants acted as controfling persons of the Company
within the meaning of section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein, By virtue of
their high-level positions, participation in and/or awareness of the Company’s operations,
and/or intimate knowledge of the Company's expansion plans and implementation
thercol, the individual defendants had the power to influence and conlro! and did
influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of the Company,
including the content and dissemination of Lthe various statetnents that plaintill contends
arc falsc and misieading. The Individual Defendants was provided with or had unlimited
access to copies of the Company's reports, press releases, public filings and other
staternents alleged by pluintiff to be misleading prior to and/or shortly after these
statetnents were 1ssued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or
cansc the statements to be corrected.

60.  Tnparticular, the Tndividual Defendant had dircet and supervisory
involvement in the day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to
have had the power to control or influence the particular transactions giving nise to the
securities violations as alleged hercin, and exercised the same,

61. By virtue of his position as a controlling person, the Individual Defendants
are liable pursnant to section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result
of the wrongful conduct, plaintiff and other members of the Class sulfered damages in
connection with their purchases of the Company's securities during the Class Peried.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, on his own bebalf and on behalf of the Class, prays for

judgment as follows:
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Al Preclarng this action to he a proper class action and.cer"tifyij.lg |
p.laintiﬁ as class representative undetr Rule 23 of the I'ederal Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. Awarding compensatory damages i favor of plaintift and the other
ruembers of the Class against the Defendants for the damages sustained as a result of the
wrongdoings of the Defendants, logether with interest thereon;

C. Awarding plaintiff the fees and expenses incurred 1n this action,
including rcasonable aliowance of fees for plaintiff's attorneys, and experts;

D. Granting cxtraordinary cquitable and/or injunctive relief as
permitted by law, equity and federal and state statutory provisions sued on hereunder,
including attaching, impounding, imposing a constructive Lusl upon or otherwise
restricting the procecds of Defendants' trading activities or their other assets so as 1o
assure that plaintiff has an effective remedy; and

E. Grranting such other and further redief as the Court may deern just
and proper.

PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY

Dated: February 4, 2002

WOLF HALDENSTEIN ADLER
FREEMAN & HERZ I.L.P

Bred/gylor Tsquith, Es{. (FTL 6782)
__Grégory M. Nespole, Esq. (GMN 86z )
Gustavo Bruckner, Esq. (GB 7701)
Fred Taylor lsquith, Bsq. '
270 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10016
(212) 545-4600 .
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